Elected Officials

Luciria L. Lovette, Mayor Pro Tem
Mitchell Boston

Patrick Underwood

Bridgette Kelly

Robert Dodd

I. Call to Order

CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE

The Honorable Mayor Sarah B. Hayes, Presiding

September 23, 2025 @ 6:00 PM
Walthourville Police Department

City Administration

Nicolas Maxwell, Fire Chief

Mrs. Ivy Norris, Finance Manager
Christopher Reed, Police Chief

Mr. Dave Martin, Public Works Administrator

Mr. Luke R. Moses, City Attorney
Ms. Shana T. Moss, City Clerk/HR Administrator

AGENDA

Mayor Sarah B. Hayes

IL Roll Call City Clerk
III.  Invocation Appointee
IV.  Pledge of Allegiance In Unison
V. Adoption of Meeting Agenda Councilmembers
VI.  Adoption of Meeting Minutes Councilmembers

e September 9, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
e September 9, 2025 Executive Session Minutes
e September 16, 2025 Special Called Auditor RFP Meeting Minutes

VII. Presentation(s)
VIII. Agenda Item(s)
1. LCPC

Mr. Jeff Ricketson

2025 Liberty County Joint Comprehensive Plan Resolution.

2. LCPC

Mrs. Lori Parks

Business License Request for Tara and Dem Boyz, LLC/Janitorial Service.

3. LCPC

Mrs. Lori Parks

One Time Event Permit for OctoberFest.

4. LCPC
One Time Event Permit

Mrs. Lori Parks
for Barbers in the Field.




IX.

XL
XII.

XIII.

XIV.

5. LCPC

One Time Event for 912 Good Eats Festival.

6. LCPC
Boundary Hall Ph. 1B — Final plat for 67 single-family homes.

7. City of Walthourville

Awarding of City Auditor.

Department Comments

e  Water Department
e Fire Department

e Police Department

Citizens Comments

Mayor’s Update

Elected Officials’ Comments

Mayor Pro Tem Luciria L. Lovette
Councilmember Mitchell Boston
Councilmember Patrick Underwood
Councilmember Bridgette Kelly

Councilmember Robert Dodd

Executive Session

Adjournment

Mrs. Lori Parks

Mrs. Mardee Sanchez

Councilmember Bridgette Kelly

City of Walthourville
Mr. Patrick Golphin
Chief Nicolas Maxwell
Chief Christopher Reed
Walthourville Citizens
Mayor Sarah B. Hayes
City of Walthourville

Mayor Hayes and Attorney Moses

Mayor and Council

When an Executive Session is warranted, it is called for the following:

(Litigation, Personnel and Real Estate)




RESOLUTION #2025-092301

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE
2025 LIBERTY COUNTY JOINT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
FOR LIBERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA

WHEREAS, the Georgia Planning Act of 1989 requires local governments to develop and maintain a
comprehensive plan to retain their Qualified Local Government status and eligibility for State permits.

grants, and loans; and

WHEREAS, the comprehensive plan is intended to serve as a policy guide for future physical
growth and land development in all of Liberty County and its municipalities; and

WHEREAS, the Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission has been designated by the local
governments in Liberty County as the organization responsible for conducting comprehensive
planning activities in Liberty County, the Town of Allenhurst, and the Cities of Flemington, Gum
Branch, Hinesville, Midway, Riceboro, and Walthourville; and

WHEREAS, the 2025 Liberty County Joint Comprehensive Plan for Liberty County was
developed through a comprehensive and cooperative planning process in coordination with state
and local officials; and

WHEREAS, Liberty County has been notified by appropriate cognizant authority that the most
recent efforts updating the local comprehensive plan did adequately address the minimum
standards and procedures promulgated by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs to
facilitate compliance with said act; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Walthourville
hereby officially adopts the 2025 Liberty County Joint Comprehensive Plan this 23™ day of

September 2025.

Sarah B. Hayes, Mayor Luciria L. Lovette, Mayor Pro Tem

Mitchell Boston, Councilmember Patrick Underwood, Councilmember

Bridgette Kelly, Councilmember Robert Dodd, Councilmember
ATTEST:

Shana T. Moss, City Clerk



Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission — Report

Governing Authority: The City of Walthourville

Mayor & Council Date: September 23, 2025

Business License: Tara and Dem Boyz, LLC / Janitorial Service
Business Owner: Tara Ferrer-Carrington
Property Owner: Homes of Integrity Construction Co. Inc.
Address: 105 Belleau Woods Circle

The Hamlet Townhomes, Parcel 040D111
Zoned: PUD (Planned Unit Development)
Comments: Will be using a room in the home for an office

Only. No clients, employees, sales, deliveries or
storage of inventory is allowed on the

premises.
Recommendation: APPROVAL
LCPC Staff: % 2 74&%/.)) 9./6-45
Lori Parks Date

Zoning Administrator




i

PR .‘eu.-

= &

Libeity Gounly B8, Sovros: Bsr, Maes, Ezmthistar Bsegrap s

Liberty County
Assessors' Office 1inch = 94 feet

. - i 2} 100 Main Street, Suite 1550
I Override 1 Land Hook [ R Hinesville, Georgla 31313 \
Roads PeEa i Phone: (912) 876-3568 L\
[/

| — N Printed on 9/16/2025
| Parcels 2 http #/www.libertycountyga com




iJN\S_\\\ Liberty County \uabm&\ mmooa Omﬁ 2028 Digest

PmgsosoDItt ___|[pate:oo-to2025 T - _|[Page:s



Qx,x{:nLT;‘jﬁg& City of Walthourville Business License Division
49 i~

Application for corporation or Limited Liability Company LLC
Occupation Tax Certificate

ALV MRTG WG 1\1r|wu>¢.

*The application must be filled out completely to obtain a City of Walthourville Occupation Tax Certificate. Payment must be filed
with the application to obtain a City of Walthourville Occupation tax Certificate. This application will not be processed if it is not
accompanied by the appropriate tax fee. You will not be billed. Please print with ink or type. In order for the appropriate tax or fee
to be determined the application accompanied by all appropriate documents must be submitted in person.

Pursuant to The Georgia Immigration Reform Act that was passed by the State Legislature and signed by the Governor all persons
applying for renewing a City of Walthourville Tax Certificate must provide a secure and verifiable document as required by O.C.G.A
50-36-1(e) (1) and sign and notarize the affidavit required by 0.C.G.A 50-36-1 (e} (2) and the affidavit required by 0.C.G.A 36-60-6

{d).

This Business is: ‘XI New Application
( ) Ownership Change / Date ownership changed & Certificate #

( }!amfilling a name/or address change for Certificate#

Name business as ;
Business Phone#ﬁ@ 0?5? ;'.ZSZ( pl "7 - ":? 2 - "siﬂ\ [y &

Name of Corporation/LLC* Z&Cs QndL D(m Bnu 2.
Business Address /OS- 5 ’ AJON A ¢ .'1 L 'ﬂ = 3)37 ;
Mailing Address, o4t 7 Al Leh. L Ja L "Ik n S M ?) 3 xf ) '; 3 -3?313

Home Address_/ 7 mp City L/ KU;IL( State GH Zip Zgl 5

ErnarlAddresssﬁfikS/ﬂ3 ‘!Ldra /‘p@m-bblfb COI’V}
b C,Ppahmn, Ennae .

Number of employees (including ownership) in City of Walthourville LFJ

E-verify# (Required if 11 or more employees)

State Sales Tax ID# Federal ID # ?5 et /??‘{ 5’? g/

. i n x
Owner Name lﬂygv ]-?WEV“ [)&-m M'I'M S e ' DOB 05:} 18 / ]C?’r?
DOES THIS BUSINESS REQUIRE A STATE LICENSE? (YES) ,)0 {NO}

(Please attach a copy of your state license or certification)

*+* All electrical, mechanical, plumbing, well drilling contractors, salon, mobile home dealers, mobile home instzllers, and any other contractor that is required to

have a State of Georgia License will be required to attach a copy of the license to this application before insurance.
***All commercially used building may be subject to an inspection for fire and safety code compliance prior to any certificate of occupancy or business license being

issued.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
ZONING DEPT {) APPROVED () DISAPPROVED BY DATE
FIRE DEPT {) APPROVED () DISAPPROVED BY DATE
CITY COUNCIL {) APPROVED () DISAPPROVED BY DATE

BUSINESS LICENSE DEPT DATE RECEIVED
BUSINESS LICENSE ISSUANCE DATE
Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: (912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Busbee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.cityofwalthourville.com




City of Walthourville Business License Division

TG

Are you, the app!'icant, the corporation, LLC or any shareholder currently delinquent in payment of any taxes or fees to
any state or local government? fV L If yes, please indicate the type of tax or fee, and the amount due with the reason

the tax is delinquent.

—
/£( / If this property is zoned residential, no clients, employees, sales, deliveries, storage of inventory, or equipment
(initals) are allowed on the premises. Only one commercial vehicle not to exceed 12,500 [bs Gross weight used as

transportation by the cccupant may be parked at the residence.

/
/FQ | swear or affirm that | have obtained or will obtain within thirty days of the date of this application a City of
(initals) Walthourville Certificate of Occupancy as required by the city ordinances.

"
/ FI > 1will comply with the Zoning Restrictions stated above.
(initals)

ffirm that the facts stated by me are true, | understand any misrepresentation
or fraudulent statement is grounds jor automatic dismissal of this application and/revocation of the license. |
understand that all signs displayed on my premise must be permitted by the City of Walthourville, | further understand
that my business must operate in compliance with all applicable state, federal and local laws, ordinances and
regulations, and that the granting of this occupation tax certificate or payment of this occupation tax does not waive the
right of any federal, state or local entity to regulate and enforce laws, ordinances and regulations. | understand that all
decisions of the Business License Division may be appealed to the City of Walthourville.

This /0 day of S‘f{(mbf , 20:1(.

- r
Legibly print name A A J;? ek - CCLW"I ﬂj’{'Dﬂ

A"
Signature of applicant -
<~

This application must be approved by the Liberty County Planning Commission

Tax Map & Parcel# DL\DD “\ Zoning Classification ?MD

Approved by: 5 Z‘;ZIZL é@ggz 2 Date Approved:

Date the request will be presented to Mayor and Council: Oqt/Q—BI/ 102-5

——]

***¥APPLICANT MUST COMPLETE THE AFFIDAVITS AND PROVIDE A SECURE AND VERIFIABLE DOCUMENT***

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: (912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Bushee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.cityofwalthourville.com




CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE BUSINESS LICENSE DIVISION — LAWFUL PRESENCE AFFIDAVIT
0.C.G. A. § 50-36-1(e)(2) AFFIDAVIT

By executing this affidavit under oath, as an applicant for a loan, grant, tax credit and/or other public benefit, as referenced
in 0.C.G.A. § 50-36-1, administered by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs, the undersigned applicant verifies
one of the following with respect to my application for a public benefit:

1) !E'c I am a United States Citizen.

I am a legal permanent resident of the United States.
3) I am a qualified alien or non-immigrant under the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act with an alien
number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal immigration agency.

My alien number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal immigration agency
is:

The undersigned applicant also hereby verifies that he or she is 18 years of age or older and has provided at least one secure
and verifiable document, as required by O.C.G. A. § 50-36-1(e)(1), with this affidavit.

The secure and verifiable document provided with this affidavit can best be classified as:

In making the above representation under oath, I understand that any person who knowingly and willfully makes a false
fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in an affidavit shall be guilty of a violation of 0.C.G.A. 16-10-20, and
face criminal penalties as allowed by such criminal statute.

Executed this the day of ,20 in (city), (state).
*Signature of Applicant
Printed Name of Applicant
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN
BEFORE ME ON THIS THE
DAY OF , 20
NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

*This Affidavit must be signed by the same person who executes the Application Certification Form Letter

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: (912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Busbee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.cityofwalthourville.com




CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE BUSINESS LICENSE DIVISION — PRIVATE EMPLOYER AFFIDAVIT

By executing this affidavit under oath, the undersigned private employer verifies one of the following with respect
to its application for a business license, occupational tax certificate, or other document required to operate a business as

referenced in O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6(d):

Section 1. Please check only one:
(A) On January 1% of the below-signed year, the individual, firm, or

corporation employed more than ten (10) employees’.
*** If you select Section 1(A), please fill out Section 2 and then execute below.

(B) / On January 1% of the below-signed year, the individual, firm, or
corporation employed ten (10) or fewer employees.

*** If you select Section 1(B}), please skip Section 2 and execute below.
Section 2.
The employer has registered with and utilizes the federal work authorization program in accordance with the
applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6. The undersigned private employer also
attests that its federal work authorization user identification number and date of authorization are as follows:

Name of Private Employer

Federal Work Authorization User Identification Number

Date of

Authorization

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on S
20 in {city), (state).

Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Officer or Agent

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME
ON THIS THE DAY OF .20

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

1To determine the number of employees for purposes of this affidavit, a business must count its total number of employees company-
wide, regardless of the city, state, or country in which they are based, working at least 35 hours a week.

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: (912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Bushee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.cityofwalthourville.com




Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission — Report

Governing Authority: The City of Walthourville

Mayor & Council Date: September 23, 2025

Business License: One Time Event for a October Fest
(October 24t — October 26™)

Business Owner: Rodney Kelly

Property Owner: Con Sabor Boricula LLC

Address: 4850 W. Oglethorpe Hwy. Parcel 050B045

Zoned: C2 (General Commercial)

Comments: Needs Mayor and Council Approval for this

One Time Event Permit.

Recommendation: APPROVAL
LCPC Staff: %ﬂo //A//JQ/ 7-/4-35
Lori Parks Date

Zoning Administrator




$\s_§yg'{(()0% - City of Walthourville Business License Division
= e
S ;= SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT
" - ‘ This application must be completed and submitted 21 Days Prior to the Outdoor Event
= = Please do not begin advertising your event until your application is approved.

5

S RVILLES S

BN R gy 0 TR

Applicant information ;

Name: f{{w{ﬂ-(_u" &'//‘/‘ - \Q’T?)" qo,’ - 5""9 3
Event Name:wl 676/04::- 74\{% q ‘ D F]c‘l? 5 cff)"f O

Business: Business Address
Mailing Address _// 7 Scett Ao City_LYipesth 115 state Gt Zip_T13 45
Home Address City State Zip

Email Address ¢, ggi_![é[&" ; Z(-,EE %7 .5;/- =¥ %)

Address of Outdoor Event: _#95¢ tyest o ?E/l)%w;m; flw of ‘6// nesllE G /517
Date/Time of Outdoor Event: 71-" JC/M ?

Beginning Date: {gc/ 2& End Date: Odé f

Event Time: _/¢ (An? yPM until __F AM /G

Set-Up Time: ?.' ae @GM)/ PM
\ "
Break-Down Time: 37 ‘09 am /ey

Event Type:[_] Private *no more than three (3) days duration in which alcohol is served/sold by a Licensed Alcoholic Beverage Caterer or bona
fide nonprofit organization*
Public *no more than three (3) days duration*

299

Anticipated Number of Participants:

Alcohol will be:["] Sold [MServed Food Will Be: Iﬂ-SOId [Jserved Onsite Cooking [Z' Yes[ |No

Has a Food Service permit been granted? ™MYes[INo [C] By The Department of Public Health [ ]JN/A

Will Tents be used? E’Yes [[INo, Howmany?____ Will sound amplification equipment be ysed? [AYes [ No
Will artificial lighting be used? /| Yes[ | No Will a sign or other type of display be used? Ez:s [INo

Detailed Description of Outdoor Event: (Include information about activities, structures, vendars, merchandise, etc.)

PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE OFAPPUCAW DATE, ___q / [5 / RIS

I acknowledge and affirm that this Outdoor Event will occur in accordance with the terms and condr'/t’}s stipulated therein of the permit.

PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE OF PROPERTY OWNER Aaue Res .-TL ﬂwﬂ _/é:: pote._ 4 4 |5 s 2028

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: (912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Busbee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.citvofwalthourville.com




Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission — Report

Governing Authority: The City of Walthourville

Mayor & Council Date: September 23, 2025

Business License: Barbers in the Field (Barber-Q)

October 8th — October 11, 2025
Business Owner: Khari Collins .
Property Owner: Con Sabor Boricula LLC — Raul Rios, Jr.
Address: 4850 W. Oglethorpe Hwy. Parcel 050B045
Zoned: C2 (General Commercial)
Comments: Needs Mayor and Council Approval for this

One Time Event Permit.

Recommendation: APPROVAL
LCPC Staff: Vﬂﬁz" ﬁﬂ‘,%@ 9-16-35
Lori Parks Date

Zoning Administrator




City of Walthourville Business License Division

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT
This application must be completed and submitted 21 Days Prior to the Outdoor Event
Please do not begin advertising your event until your application is approved.

ALWIVE NIOVISG WL IIPROVING

Applicant information

Name: fba\/bﬂfi in e, o) /L’&f)z/‘b.ﬁ* Q\Phone Number: 9/2 ('/SZ"A’SSZ&

el
’.,QC Event Name: /%.CM’I /]j)/ li N
““  Business: /ﬂqu,m,&Q/ (=l Business Address_ 7/ ﬁ@ I/VW/QS IOJGM v

MaﬂmgAddress ‘-?’[?) F(‘) MI/% QKM’)U City L/J}_’\'LSU! ” State Qa 721p ?f%/’%
Home Address_ 5 2 Kz sdon Lm d city_ V], dpoonty seate_ (S 2ip 31320
Email Address /(z/m Nr—dc{ (@ L Aty . Conn i

Address of Outdoor Event: “x‘f)f)’D \W OC\LDJ 'H/\COV’}C, ’r‘(b\)\j

Date/Time of Outdoor Event: J (

Beginning Date: 18/ il /222 End Date: o/ ﬂ/ 297, o - 8- As Jo /0-1l- A9

Event Time: _I2.00 AM /@) until PM

Set-Up Time: _{ l; /20 @D/ PM

Break-Down Time: IZ DO @/ PM

Event Type: [_] Private *no more than three (3) days duration in which alcohol s served/sold by a Licensed Alcoholic Beverage Caterer or bona
fide nonprofit organization*

mPublic *no more than three (3} days duration*

Anticipated Number of Participants: ////

Alcohol will be: [] Sold [HServed Food wm Be msmd [Jserved Onsite Cooking m Yes[ | No

Has a Food Service permit been granted? [E Yes[ | No N By The Department of Public Health [_] N/A

Will Tents be used? X] Yes[ |No How many? A Will sound amplification equipment be used? m Yes[ |No
Will artificial lighting be used? ] Yes ﬂ, M.o Will a sign or other type of display be used? mYes [Ino

Detailed Description of Qutdogr Event: (Include information EbDUtECtIVlttES, structures, vendors, merchandlse etc.) /
///’ 3 //H" -//(

4 /7”?/721/\)0/\ AQ _QI/K’ZOOZ 7_/'111 /%,&f})@m /]ﬂ} /)[A
ﬁ‘im)?// 1 m/f/cﬂ%’m ‘i?f&f(‘u Mw’/’rﬂ ol non, =S, Z,,/ Oi l/(r‘mf/gfj

/)/)0)/: %’ _S Szzusf/f-/\ g()u / jn QY
PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT: %;»/ ﬂ //n-\ %) /’f 7 DATE: O‘TS Wi /% / ’ZOZS

1 acknowledge and affirm that this Outdoor Event will occur in accordance with the terms and conditions stipulated therein of the permit.

PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE of properTy owner_ RAUC Ry« M pate: 02, OB/ ZAZ,)/

Mailing Address: P.Q Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: (912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Busbee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.cityofwalthourville.com




Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission — Report

Governing Authority: The City of Walthourville

Mayor & Council Date: September 23, 2025

Business License: Midnight Oasis of Brunswick

Business Owner: Shanesia Jaudon

Property Owner: Con Sabor Boricula LLC — Raul Rios, Jr.
Address: 4850 W. Oglethorpe Hwy. Parcel 050B045
Zoned: C2 (General Commercial)

Comments: Needs Mayor and Council Approval for this

One Time Event Permit.

Recommendation: APPROVAL
LCPC Staff: ‘%ﬂb )Dﬂ/(.jil@/ q" /6' A5
Lori Parks Date

Zoning Administrator




City of Walthourville Business License Division

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT
This application must be completed and submitted 21 Days Prior to the Outdoor Event
Please do not begin advertising your event until your application is approved.

Applicant information
Name: Shanesia Jaudon

Business: Midnight Oasis Of Brunswick
Business Address 3365 Cypress Mill Rd. Brunswick, Georgia 31520
Mailing Address_ 128 Governors Bivd. Hinesville, Georgia 31313

Home Address 128 Governors Blvd. city Hinesville state_Georgia zip 31313

Email Address _info@midnightoasisbwk.com
Address of Outdoor Event:  Bomaz Field 4850 W. Oglethorpe Hwy. Hinesville, Georgia 31313

Date/Time of Ouf%ﬂ:}ﬂr?w%ozg. ) Zl” /Z!)Zg
Beginning Date: _10/64/2025~ End Date: __10/0472025

Event Time: _ 11:00  am/pM until __08:00  am/pm
Set-Up Time: ___09:00-10:00 am/pm

08:00-09:00 a1/ pM

Break-Down Time:

Event Type:[ ] Private *no more than three (3} days duration in which aicohol is served/sold by a Licensed Alcoholic Beverage Caterer or bona
fide nonprofit organization*

Public *no more than three (3) days duration*

Anticipated Number of Participants: _150

Alcohol will be: [ ] Sold [ ] Served Food Will Be: [x]Soid[]Served  Onsite Cooking [] Yes[x]No

Has a Food Service permit been granted? [ ] Yes [x] No I8y The Department of Public Health [x] N/A

Will Tents be used? [X] Yes[ |No How many? _20 Will sound amplification equipment be used? [X] Yes [ | No
will artificial lighting be used? [] Yes [X] No Will a sign or other type of display be used? [ ]Yes[X]No

Detailed Description of Outdoar Event: {Include information about activities, structures, vendors, merchandise, etc.) 912 Good Eats Festival
Midnight Oasis Of Brunswick is a dedicated nonprofit organization that actively gives back to our local communities.

Our mission for this festival is to is support our local small businesses & community by creating networking opportunities.

We will have family friendly festival, food trucks & local eats, arts/crafts vendors, kids zone bounce house/face painting &

live entertainment, with a diverse line u?‘ of vendors offering products, services and resources.
PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT:Shanesia Jaudon pare, 09, 08, 2025

1 acknowledge and affirm that this Outdoor Event will occur in accordance with the terms and.conditions stipulated therein of the permit.

PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE OF PROPERTY OWNER EﬂJL P\‘:@s Qmuﬁ ﬂfb vate 4 s Il s JEK

v

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: {912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Busbee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.cityofwalthourville.com




$T0T ‘€T "dog UOISSILIWO,) BUIUUR| PAIEPIOSUO.) ALIqIT]

peoy uewpier] :UOFEI0 |

dNd pauoy .
s3uremp Afrurey-si3uig .

DB 9091 UO S10[ /9 o
UOTIdTIDSo(]

QY ¥3LYYO

Sureaurduy Suo T
NEETN AV |

e (uapAiq)

& D11 0D Surplo
pue senjradorg A31aqr

:T9dOoAd(]

1e[d [eulq
d1 SSeUJ TIeH ATepunog




., “. otk

e 1) M&EE{.

: m i

ia

. Busbee RA0 peury

| BN | z;..” i
e mm,_..mwx_mu__p_mm_%_ ’

den Ayrumdip




193] G| RiBA Jedy NIy
}99) G| JOONIS PIBA SPIS WNWIUIA
199} G/ (JoL1sju) paeA opIS WnwiUIA
199} G| PIBA JUOI4 LUNWIUIA
103} Gp SuIq Bulpling ye YIpIAA 107 winwiuipy
198} alenbs goo‘y B3Iy 107 @|qesn whnuiulpy
198} aienbs oog'y BOJY 107 SSOID) WnWIUIpy

(5307 11) s3077 uapren

198 G| Pl Jeay WNWIUIp
1°8] G| 198115 PIeA 8pIS WNWIUIp
199} G/ (4oLsyul) pleA spiS WUl
°sl G| PIEA JUOIH{ WNWIUIA
}°8} 09 sur Buipjing 3 YIpipA 307 winwiuny
}o8) alenbs Qpg‘y Baly 107 9|gesn wnwiulpy
}@8} alenbs 0op‘g Baly/ 107 SS0J5) WNWIUIA

(8307 9¢6) s30T paepue;g
{3




: w_ ﬁcm bl WM ol

g £24 8

| uoije}s dwing

EX) ceb 2

E = s s s y

b Q i =

i q A\ £ /

i B | 1071 AJlunwwion
5% &N
wmm ; n -
S]0- uapJen)

ZONE "A”

TRACT : 1
2815367 SQ FT
64.63 ACRES

ZONE °X”

LIMITS OF FLOCD ZONE

Y CON
ALNNOD ONOT

OF COUNTY LINE
s
NIS ANDREW

LAND, JR,
L # 072008

ye[d Areurwir[ai 1 aseyJ — ue[J [[elPA0)



| ' 1 [EVTRI

1 ' i 1 {ILOTB!l'LOTM
H ot a1 | o7 82
r'.'al‘!Lor'rglll-OTEDl f !—-—-—'
i ]

L ——
R O e

T aRcMAN ROAD
—-——

‘czﬁsﬂvjﬂ’
*.
N/F CHAMPION

! GYMNASTICS UNLIMITED, LLC
PARCEL 4 24CD—084

‘\ N/F TS WHITE & AC. AMITE
\ PARCEL ¢ 040D-083
i
i

N/F WALTHOURVILLE
PROPERTIES, LLG
PARCEL § 0418-002

N/F €90 MOTORSPOR
PARCEL 4 0418-0i

- .',_ - — =yt —x
e B 4
7
I
OF COUNTY UNE
812
@
@
@
@
o @
i 9
- N/
s Rk
8 Jf2
2 [ -2
) 8
— &
2 @
& ®
2 ®
9 L) 2015987 sa €1
@ 54.53 ACRES
2|
@ | 2]
) f @ LIMITS OF FLOOD ZONE
F 8 @ ZoNE x" ((ZONE "a”
i 8 |12
8 |l|2
® % 1 @
\ o |I|IL=2

=T
STATION

.....

)
T S
T O

LT EdsTMG

*  WETLANDS x

NIS ANDREW ThaT ':'. \
LAND, vR. - - o] o 4
§ 072008 RN

Standard L‘ots":“
Garden Lots

Community Lot




| SMREr e LOT 85 ¢ =¥t ose 1 T -y (T

! i i i 'Lmu!m'ru" X |, S i ‘_'_' ______________
! Ligraa| O] ® | tome2] ! I IR e i B e L
o l i e e ——ARoMAN ROAD
o] b —— .
=1 | { e
% ‘ — = . -/;'u’f:—"’
_____ N\ = (i_'_ — ‘
11— = = ” A l 1
Ae— s @ @ E i \ @ \ i
©|®|® © . @ o 8 | GYUNASTES UNCITED. L
. ® A \ o 1! PARCIL ¢ D40D—08+
:;_='\ ® @ .\,] \ @ |t |
[ i3 ;
' : @ @ \! i
@ o ‘1
OF COUNTY LINE ———— ] ‘ = 11 ‘

®
L
®

LONG COUNTFY

®
o
©

| N/F TS GHITE & AC, WHITE

PEROTL 2 pan—fR3 |

®

N/F MALTHOURVILLE
PROPERTIES, LLC
PARCEL § 041B-C02

. - EXISTING .
= [ L WETLaNDS 7Lt _°,°

TRACT = 1
2815367 SQ FT
64.53 ACRES N/F 630 MCTORSPCR

PARCEL § 041B-0

LIMITS OF FLOOD TONE

ZONE X" [ ZONE ‘A”

PYREET T W S T

Pump station

Garden Lots
Wetlands




X3ANI L33HS

X3pUuR}a3Yyg




T - = 5 T 3% < - 7 7 .
O R - B TS e nan -
st — — s — e —— —— — — — — — — -
i i E]
i 3 %. & % - s

LY TV

IS0 SLOT W6 FE SLO1
41 ISVIHd "NOISLAIQLS TIVEH AdvANI0Y

e o
INI'OD SONITTOH ANY SHILYIdONT L LU3A

}99YSg



LLHTIOUA LW

-t

c

S1.071

-

IT SOISION*
g4I 45VHd 'NOIBLAIQES TIVH LuvaNiod

IV TVNIL

i
e
o

]

-
Yo

2 e -

i

HYauros

=

5)_AYM_THH &

I Fgs PR e

o

P ey
(R PN

[ R e e

e on pan
L ey g e




a7

1407

SHILYAAONU] LLY

N

INTOD SONICTTOH (1

11°§01 ST.OT ¥ fo+€ SLOT

1 SVHA 'NOISLAIALENS TIVE .LAvas:ed

LVTd TVNI

(60" R/W)

CONNECTOR ST

RTINS

. 3

LR s Aat)
W arars oy e e

}o9yqg




I

¢ rade

JYLIVNG

FAHYONTION

! nn T
,.uc i
A )
=) h's s -
_,W ,l.fzﬁ_nx -~ 3 B
fa,w, 40.. * il 5 "
2 I P
Y .
v |
1\\\
.\.\ s
7 h
i .\\ ,.. ._ ‘048
) i g r ,. A ﬂ‘ -~
e \ \ , , :
\/ . ,_ ,
— \ .“ i \
_, i I 1\
| |
g = h u . : .,
\ \ F b ._
. , \ o~ 8 o
| P ) 2 | _» ,
- \ ) __
\ A\, _ \ _, " )
: ) \ e
\ - ,, . |
] i \ ,, A
(w/n 09} S5Yd JoisME
. —
= g r
{ =
= _ -

3
‘

RIW

)
| w
<
'
P
|
1 m”

|
| | e
« | O
|
= W)
r F
[ | 2
8

e

S

IV A

27

—
iy sy




. \
- . .\

cz0T ‘¢t "dog UOISSIUIUIOY) Suluue] ] pajeprjosuor) Apoaqi

SdUEBUUIRW [eIdUa3/ATep 10J Sjudwases adeurer(] .
(9 97°0) sSpuepapM e
'VOH 943 03 suonespa(q

90UBUSJUIEW [RUOIIOUNJ I0J SJUSWIDSLd d3eurel(] .

SIUSWIDAOIA W 19]eMUIIO)S PUR IOMIS “ISJBAL o

199J $(08 — 19913G 103D3UUO0D)
199} CCE — Sse( [0ISHg
1997 OCT — 39911§ STuUa(
199] Z1Z — N0 Addep
(Uotsue}xa) 199] 7¥/ — AepM [[eH Arepunog
(‘T €9°() [2103) SI9DIIS MIN] o
“AJT) 313 0} suonEdIpa(




‘paperd
[PUl} U99q sey puod ayj jo ApIinus oy
[un [T puod] 103 Juowases a3eurerp ayj
JO uonedIpap a3 3dsdde jou [im A1) ayJ.

‘Poreisut s1 [T puod] punose Gunusy o
[un aseyd swyy ur asnoy Aue 1oy ponssi

°q jou [reys Aduednodo jo sajeonmIad

V1 'Yd I0J SUOIIpUO)) [eIoadg

‘papraoad
97 [[eYS $8 AM] 03 peor Ssedde pPuodas v

dNd I0J UonIpuo)) [enadg
B & @&




UOISSIWIWOD) SUIUUR] [ Pajepljosuo’) A310qr]

'90URUSUIRW JO SIEA OM] [[NJ
e S398 AJ1D) 9} 2INSUd [[IM SIY[ ‘PIIONIISUOD
SI 31 @dUO ‘O Y3 12d “paxmbar aq im HOT
SdueUdjUTeW djeredds Yy ‘D)7 2dUBUIIUTEW
°oU} Ul popnpur jou SI I ‘ISAIMOY

OO0
Npa1d jo 1opd] Arewrid ayj ur popnpur S

UOIDNIISUOD SI1 ‘910219 ], ‘3oen3 uonyels dund
9} Puo4aq 3[mq 394 J0U SI }9911G 101PUUOD)
‘uonIpuod [ewads qNJd Yy 03 3adsar ypm




UOISSIWIWOY) SUTuuR|] pajeprjosuo’) A11aqry

W}
10} popasu are suonipuod fewads reqrurs os
podus) Aauy axe 1ou pue paperd Suraq si yeym
JO SHWIT 9y} UIY}IM JOU a1 gJ "YJ U0 UMOUS

(€ pue ¢ spuod) spuod mau om) ayy ‘IOAIMOL]

‘paysnes
u99q aAey suonipuod [ewads yjoq ‘210§219Y7,
Podusy (ST 1 pue gf yJ uim ponepd
ATINy mou st v "yq ur payperd Arrenaed 1 puod
'SuonIpuod [erads jyerd 1 yg 03 padsar yyipn




UOISSIWLUO) SUIUUR] [ PAjRPIOsu0) A110q17]

Teuonerado st uonyeys dummd
U} [Bun pordnddo jou dIe SISNOY INSUD

O} pojuelLIeM a1t SUOIIIPUOD [e1dads [euonIppy

‘D01 Areurtad
9y} ur popnpur st uond[dwod sy “}o0:g
I03109UU0)) 03 Je[IWIS "UOIIONIISU0D I9pun [[1s
st uongels dwnd ay} “4eaamopy -uoneys dund
9U3} O} PajnoiI st g1 ‘YJ Woaj 93emas ayj ‘Afaser]




By
-Ul OsTe SI sjuswLAoxdwr sy} Jo sdurUIUTEW

10} 00€T6I$ JOo junowe oy ur HO Uy

00S°SPES - syuswanoxduur Axrepuodag .

00S798$ - sjuowesordwir ArewtJ .

:sjunoure
SUIMO[[0} ay) ur DO Aq posjuerens ore
SjuswRAoIdwr Suruteurar sy jJo uUomE[ESUI
UL ‘pafeisur are (uoneys dwund ayp jsed
}199.41S I019uu0) uo jdedxe) 1eopng pue gind
pue (uorjes dwund oy 1daoxa) sapImn ayJ




UOISSIWWO) FUIUUR] ] Pajeprjosuo)) A31aqi

SUONIPUOD [eads pue piepuels Ym

SUOIjedIpap Jo dduejdarde pue

LV'1d "IVNIA 2Y1 JO TVAOUIIV

d1 asey [[eH Arepunog

- UoTjepusaWIuioday] Jjjeis




20T ‘€T dog

UOISSIUILIOY) SUIUUe] | PajepIjosuo)) Ky1aqr

‘AJLIOUINE [eJUSUWIUISA0S
dutrordde ay; pue ‘uorsstwio)  duruuerg
°U} 10 DJDT 943 Jo 103011 3y) Jo [eaoxdde pue
uoneoygnou Ioud noyym pamoye are reaoidde
JO SUORIPUOd 3y} WOl uoneIAdp 10 dSueyd ON

"UOHOE SIUY} JO UOTIPUOD © PIIdPISUO0D
ole uopedrdde smy3 ur perdwr 1o paurejuod
SjUoulalels pue ‘sferrajew ‘sjuauwmndop ‘suerd v

"UOHDNIISUOD AUE JO JUSWISDUSWIWIOD
0} Jo1id syruad pue sssusdI [eIopa) pue d3e]s

Ted0] parmbaix e ureqo jsnwr jueordde ayg

SUOBTPUOS PICPUEIS DT
® ]




L
‘papraoid st 3rpa1d
JO 1939 SdurUSIUTEW B pue Pajarduwod
A[LI019®JSIIES ST J9911G 10}09UU0))

pue

‘POPIODI SI J[[IAINOYI[EM JO A}D) a3

03 joe1} uonels dund sy Suriiojsuern

Pa3p a3 pue ‘paisay A[Liojoeysiyes
‘9101dwod st uoneys dwind sy °g

. ‘pojreisur
mﬁmﬁsmNmﬁsogﬁcsoémﬁu:&mﬁ.<

Tun aseyd siyy ur asnoy Lue 103
pansst aq jou [[eys Aduednodo jo sajedrynIey) I

SUOT}IPUO,) [e1Dadg




UOISSIWIWOY) Suiuue] | pajepijosuor) Ay1aqi

‘Ayoam3us 191y uI payerd
[BU U99q aA®Y A9y} [un ¢ pue g spuod
I0} syuswases adeurelp ayj Jo uonedIpap
ou3} 3dadde jou [m I ‘I9AOMOH ‘T puod
103 Juswases agdeurelp ayy sydodoe A1 oyl g

(p,#100) SUOTITPUO.) [e10adG
4 @ @




We’re of Service to
Those Serving Others.

PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE
AUDIT SERVICES TO
THE CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE

< X




Proposal to Provide Audit Services to

The City of Walthourville

RFP #2025-01

Legal Name

Contacts

_ James Moore & Co., P.L.

| FEIN59-3204548
_‘ 5931 NW 1st Place
Gainesville, Florida 32607

Phons: 852.378.1331
Fax: 352.372.3741

www.jmco.com

. Zach Chalifour; CPA

Engagement Lead Partner

' Zach.Chalifour@jmeco.com

Brendan McKitrick, CPA, CISA

" Engagement Director

*  Brendan.McKitrick@meco.com

April 25, 2025




-_— e e e W aALA W S SR W

only refers
to our

Our philesophy is simple: Dsliver extrems valus for the fees our clients ray. While choosing an audit firm should
come down to qualifications, capabilities, and commitment, we know cost plays a role as well. And we work hard to
make sure they are absolutely reasonable for the level of service you receive.

Our proposed fees for the audit services are based on the assumption that the accounting records for your
organization will be maintained in good condition and that assistance requested from your personnel will be

provided in both a complete and timely manner.
Our total all-inclusive maximum fees for the engagement include all direct and indirect costs including all
out-of-pocket expenses.

Vi Fiseal Year End Fee

December 31, 2021 $25,000
December 31, 2022 $26,000
December 31, 2023 $27,000
December 31, 2024 $28,000

How We Bill For Additional Professional Services

Your team will reach out routinely throughout the year to discuss new accounting issues or significant
transactions. Because we value consistent communication, we consider these routine consultations to be
included in the scope of the proposed fees. Additionally, these fees are inclusive of periodic meetings with
your management conducted outside the time encompassed by the proposed audit schedule.

If you would like to engage James Moore for a larger project, we will render a billing for such services at an
amount or rates agreed upon prior to the beginning of the engagement. Our blended hourly rate for these

services is $195/hour.

Vs b 4 AP 2
iz Gl A PROPOSAL TO THE CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE



a

Government Services Team

At the heart of our firm's practice lies a deep commitment to serving government entities. Our Government Services
Team is fully entrenched in your industry, recognizing that comprehending the challenges you face is the key to
providing effective solutions. These team members specialize in working with government clients and maintain

strong affiliations with prominent industry organizations to stay at the forefront of developments.

With a rich history of providing auditing services to over 100 local govarnmeants and relatad crganizations

in Florida, James Moore possesses a profound understanding of entities like yours. This extensive experience
enables us to conduct your audit with efficiency and thoroughness, delivering a cost-effective vet comprehensive
engagement. However, we go beyond the role of 2 mere government auditor; we stand ready to assist you with all

the intricacies of financial reporting and daily challenges.
In addition to our independent auditing services, we offer a range of solutions that include:
» Revenue Enhancement Audits

» Federal and State Compliance Solutions
» Needs Assessments - Financial and IT

» Financial Condition Assessments
» Rate Studies

»  Audit Readiness
»  Actuarial Report Interpretations
» Risk Management Assistance

»  Budget Development/Evaluation
» Internal Control Analyses
» Elected Official Orientation

»  Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports
»  Lean Six Sigma

»  New Accounting Standard Implementation
Fund Balance Planning and Management

Assistance
» Forensic Auditing »  Agreed-Upon Procedures

» Decision Validation Comfort letters in connection with debt securities

»  Accounting Consulting Solutions

Two of your engagement leaders, Zzch Chazlifour and James Hallara n, currently serve on the GFOA's ACFR
Review Committee, which reviews ACFRs of governmental entities to determine if an ACFR mests the reporting
requirements necessary to obtain the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

James also has served on the FICPA Local Government Committee for several years and is currently on the FGFOA
Technical Resource Committee. In addition, both he and Zach have taught at several FGFOA Conferences and local
chapter mestings and are frequent speakers throughout the state of Florida.

. 5 24
A PROPOSAL TO THE CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE



KENDALL L. DAVIS, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
34 S. WILLIAMS ST
HAZLEHURST, GEORGIA 31539
(912)375-6077

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Walthourville
Walthourville, Georgia

Dear Mayor and Council,

Please see below Engagement Letter for the conduct of your 2021-2024 annual audits. Thank you for the
opportunity to propose on them.
I'have been in discussions with Ms. Moss about the availability of the documents to perform these audits and

file them with the Georgia Department of Audits and Accounts. Based on what I know I plan to have these
audits completed by December 31, 2024. This will require much effort on the City’s part to get me everything

that I need in a timely manner.

Based on the aforementioned, it would be my intent to get your 2025 audit filed by the due date of June 30,
2026. After the 2024 is filed then the City will be in compliance with state law. As I am sure you all know,
the City may apply for loans/grants for specific projects to benefit its citizens.

I do have significant experience conducting audits. I actually perform the Cities of Blackshear, Folkston,
Homeland, and Midway among others.

I will be available for discussions about the progress of each audit at the will of the Mayor and each council
member. For these audits to be completed as we know both parties need to be as transparent as possible for

matters concerning these audits.

If acceptable, please sign the last page and return that page only. Afterwards, I will start requesting documents
to get these done for the City.

Sincerely,

Kendall £. Davis, CF?



AILNASLAR IR Bie BFLRY HWTg A 2 Ns

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
34 S. WILLIAMS ST
HAZLEHURST, GEORGIA 31539
(912)375-6077

AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER

September 10, 2025

City of Walthourville
Walthourville, Georgia

I am pleased to confirm my understanding of the services that I am to provide for the City of Walthourville for the years

ended December 31, 2021. 2022, 2023. 2024 with the option to extend for four additional years.

Audit Scope and Objectives

I'will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Walthourville, Georgia (City), as of and for the year ended December
31. 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024 with the option to extend for four additional years, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively compromise the City of Walthourville’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. My audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAS), will provide an opinion on them in relation to the financial statements as a
whole in a report combined with my auditor’s report on the financial statements.

The objectives of my audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion about
whether the financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), and to report on the fairness of the supplementary
information referred to in the first paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The
objective also includes reporting on:

Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and award
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS).

Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title
2 US. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

The GAGAS report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters will include a
paragraph that states that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City ’s internal control
or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with GAGAS in considering
the City °s internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance’s report on internal control over compliance will
include a paragraph that states that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
adit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements,

2



SSTITTTTO TUUTSTUOTAN) e smiaun ssua aatuu UL VIIUL GLIG GLE VULISIUGLGU LIALGLIAL 1L LISTE 1S @ SUDSIanial 11Kelinood nat,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial

statements.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

I' will conduct my audit in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in GAGAS, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a
determination of major program(s) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other procedures I consider necessary
to enable us to express such opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS, I exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

I will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management. I will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, including disclosures, and
determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation. I will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or
(4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the City or to acts by management or employees
acting on behalf of the City. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, GAGAS does not expect auditors
to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide

reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control combined with the inherent risks of an audit by not performing a
detailed examination of all transactions there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance
may not be detected by me, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS, GAGAS,
and the Uniform Guidance. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws,
regulations, contracts or agreements that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or on major
programs. However, I will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial
reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to my attention I will also inform the appropriate level of
management of any violations of laws, regulations, contracts or agreements that come fo my attention, unless clearly
inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to my attention, unless clearly inconsequential. I will include
such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. My responsibility as an auditor is limited to the period covered by
my audit and does not extend to any later periods for which I am not engaged as an auditor.

I have identified the following significant risk(s) of material misstatement as part of my audit planning:

Management override of controls

Equity skimming as defined by the Uniform Guidance (for Cities subject to such restrictions)
Accounting for mortgage refinancing

Adoption of new revenue recognition standards

Other historically noted financial statement issues

If, as a result of my planning procedures, I identify additional risks not mentioned here, they may be communicated in a
separate communication.

I'will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City ’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

My procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, tests of

the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities by
sorrespondence with selected customers, creditors and financial institutions. I will also request written representations

Tom your attorney as part of the engagement.
-may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your account. I
nay share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain committed to maintaining the

3



3 = - TT O 7 T TTUTTISANITAMS ssasmidats PVALVAVLYG PAVMVLILL WO, GLIU OULVA UL LD LY
protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, I will secure confidentiality agreements with all
service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and I will take reasonable precautions to determine
that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to
others. In the event that I am unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your
consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, I will
remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party service providers.

Audit Procedures — Internal Control

I will obtain an understanding of the City and its environment, including internal control relevant to the audit, sufficient to
identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override
of internal control. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that I consider relevant
to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting
misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. My tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal
control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in my report on internal control issued pursuant to GAGAS.

As required by the Uniform Guidance, I will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the effectiveness of the
design and operation of controls that I consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with
compliance requirements applicable to each major Federal program. However, my tests will be less in scope than would
be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in my report on
internal control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control.
Accordingly, I will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, I will communicate to you and those charged with
governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under professional standards, GAGAS,

and the Uniform Guidance.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, I will
perform tests of the City of Walthourville’s compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and
agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on
overall compliance, and I will not express such an opinion in my report on compliance issued pursuant to GAGAS.

The Uniform Guidance requires that I also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
City has complied with Federal statutes, laws and regulations, provisions of contracts and grant agreements and conditions
of Federal awards applicable to major programs. My procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable
procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements applicable that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the City ’s major programs. For Federal programs that are included in the
Compliance Supplement, my compliance and internal control procedures will relate to the compliance procedures that the
Compliance Supplement identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion
on City of Walthourville’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in my report on
compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

Other Services

Non-Audit Services
As part of my engagement, and in order to complete the audited financial statements in a timely manner, you have

requested that I assist you with a variety of non-audit services. Under professional standards these services may increase
my risk of independence. In order to reduce any independence risk that may exist to an acceptable level, you will be
required to take responsibility for those services. Further, you will be required to assign personnel with suitable skills,

4



NEWLE LW WAL WAL W LLIGL OUWLL Gl W auuuylauxv auu ﬂl}lJI.UlJl 1alLs.

¢ memm e v Aw WL praeva
r

‘Services to be p}éirided will include the following:

1. You will provide adjusted (close-out) financial statements for the audit report in addition information
for preparation of the notes to the financial statements and supplementary data in accordance with
GAAP. I will use the City’s adjusted financial statements to begin my audit. I will suggest any other

adjustments that need to be made.

These non-audit services do not constitute an audit under GAGAS, and such services will not be conducted in accordance
with GAGAS.

I will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards issued by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The other services are limited to the financial statements, supplementary information, and
related notes previously defined. I, in my sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure
or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

My audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for designing,
implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including monitoring ongoing activities; for the
selection and application of accounting principles; and for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in conformity with GAAP. You are also responsible for making drafis of financial statements, all financial records and
related information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information, (including information from
outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information
of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as
records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, and other
information as needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (2) additional information that we may request
for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom we determine it necessary
to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of my audit, I will require certain written representations from you about the

financial statements and related matters.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to me in
the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by me during the
current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to

the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for
informing me about all known or suspected fraud affecting the City involving (1) management, (2) employees who have
significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
City received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the City complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements
and grants. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s responsibility to evaluate and monitor
noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when
instances of noncompliance are identified, including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and
take corrective action on reported audit findings; and prepare a schedule of the status of prior audit findings, questioned
costs, and recommendations and a corrective action plan. The schedule of the status of prior audit findings, questioned

costs, and recommendations should be available for my review.

You are also responsible for making drafts of financial statements, schedule of expenditures of Federal awards, all
financial records, and related information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information
(including information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with
(1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and
transactions, and other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other

5



TAATA Atil AsiiteLAnis LAALEL FT M RKACET R WM LWL

et I Gl ST

for the purpose of the aud}t; and (4) unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom we determine it necessary
to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of my audit, I will require certain written representations from you about the
financial statements; schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws,

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and related matters.

You are responsible for identifying all Federal awards received and understanding and complying with the compliance
requirements, and for the preparation schedule of expenditures of Federal awards, including related notes, the
supplementary information in conformity with GAAS. You agree to include my report on the supplementary information
in any document that contains, and indicates that I have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to
include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes my report
thereon OR make the audited financial statements readily available for users of the supplementary information no later
than the date the supplementary information is issued with my report thereon. Your responsibilities include
acknowledging to us in the management representation letter that:

1. you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP

2. you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with

GAAP
the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have

changed, the reasons for such changes); and
4. you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or

presentation of the supplementary information.

3,

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing copies of previous financial audits, and
any other audits, attestations, studies, or reviews directly related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to me corrective actions taken to address significant findings
and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestations, studies, or reviews, and reporting findings and the current
status of such findings in the schedule of the status of prior audit findings, questioned costs and recommendations, in
accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. You are also responsible for providing management’s views
on my current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and

for the timing and format for providing that information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the nonattest services I provide; oversee the services by
designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the

adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for them.

Engagement administration, fees, and other

I'understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, and other confirmations we request and will
locate any documents selected by us for testing. A list of information I expect to need for my audit will be sent to you.

Please have this information available for us on the scheduled audit date.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Kendall L. Davis, P.C. and constitutes confidential
information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be
made available upon request and in a timely manner to approved interested parties only for purposes of a quality review of
the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. I will notify you of any such request. If
requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Kendall L. Davis, P.C.

personnel. Furthermore, upon request, I may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned

parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including

other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of six years after the report release date
period.

Kendall L. Davis, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the
eports or authorizing another individual to sign it. ['will complete my audit and issue my reports in a timely manner to

6



The fee for the audit will be § 20,000 per year. The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel
and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. If significant
additional time is necessary, I will keep you informed of any problems I encounter and my fees will be adjusted
accordingly. My invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable upon
presentation. Work may be suspended if your account becomes 120 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until
your account is paid in full. If T elect to terminate my services for nonpayment, my engagement will be deemed to have
been completed upon written notification of termination, even if I have not completed my report. You will be obligated to
compensate me for all time expended and to reimburse me for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of

termination.

I affirm that I or members of my organization have not been suspended or debarred from performing
government audits, or other government activity.

I certify that I nor members of my firm do not and will not discriminate as to race, sex, religion, color, age,
creed or national origin in regard to obligation, work, and services to be performed under the terms of any

contract ensuing from this proposal.

Government Auditing Standards require that I provided you with a copy of my most recent external peer review
report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received

during the period of the contract. My peer review report is included.

Reporting
I will issue written reports upon completion of my audit. My reports will be addressed to the City of Walthourville.

Circumstances may arise in which my report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of my
audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for me to modify my opinion, add a separate
section, or add an emphasis- of-matter or other-matter paragraph to my auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from
this engagement. If my opinions are other than unmodified, I will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any
reason, I am unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, I may decline to express

opinions or issue reports, or I may withdraw from this engagement.

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other
matters will state that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City ’s internal control
or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City ’s internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal control
over compliance (if applicable) will state that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to
describe the scope of testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.

I appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of
my engagement. If you have any questions, please let me know. If you agree with the terms of my engagement as

described in this letter, please sign below and return it to me.
Sincerely,
Kendall f, Davis, CPA

Kendall L. Davis, P.C.
Certified Public Accountant



Client Response

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the City of Walthourville.

Management signature:

Title: City Clerk

Date:

Governance signature:

Title: Mayor

Date:




Kendall Lewis Davis
- CERTEFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

. License Type .

" CPAG2304 ACTIVE
License Number License Status
01/0172024 : 12/31/2025
License Effective Date

- License Expiration Date

Kendall L. Davis PC

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

License Type

ACF004157 ACTIVE

License Number License Status

07/01/2024 06/30/2026
License Effective Date License Expiraticn Date



“r

Qacny o

' April 25, 2024

Kendall Davis

Kendall L. Davis , P, C.

. 34 8 William St .

 + Hazlehurst, GA 31539-6108

- Dear Kendall Davis:

Itis :my pleasure fo nofify yéu.that on Aprii 25, 2024, the Georgia Peer Review Committee accepted the
report on the most recent System. Review of your firm. The due date for your next review is December 31,
2028. This is the date by which all review -documents should be completed and submitted to the

administering entity,
- As f/ou’ khow,‘ the report had a peer review raﬁng of pass. The Committee asked me to convey ifs
. congratulations to the firm. ' ;

) Th_an_ﬁk yéu for your cooperation.

- Sincerely,

Jessica Mytrohovich
CFO . ) '
jmytrohovich@gscpa.org
. 404-504-2998 -

2 ce: ‘_Réhdy Dummer

* " Firm Number: - 90001011798 . Review Number: 604535

Six Concouirse Parkway, Suite 500 | Atlanta, GA 30328 | 404-231-8675 | 800-330-8889 | Fax 404:237-1291 | wiivigsepa.org



